
 

Page 1 

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

28

29

MINUTES OF THE 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS REGULAR MEETING 

OTAY WATER DISTRICT 
May 17, 2000 

 
1. The meeting was called to order by President Price  at 1:34 p.m. 

in the District Boardroom, 2554 Sweetwater Springs Boulevard, Spring Valley, 

California. 

DIRECTORS PRESENT: Directors Price, Inocentes, Laudner, Poveda 
and Watton  
 

DIRECTORS ABSENT: None 
 
STAFF PRESENT:  General Manager Griego 
    General Counsel Harron 

Operations Department Head Mahanke 
Admin. Services Department Head Alvarez 
Finance Department Head Chambers 
Acting Eng. Department Head Peasley 
Government Affairs Admin. Bartlett-May 
District Secretary Smith 
Others as per attached list 
 

 2. Upon conclusion of the Pledge of Allegiance, a motion was made 

by Director Price, seconded by Director Watton and unanimously carried, to 

amend the Agenda to move Items 8 and 9 before Item 4 and approve the 

Agenda as amended .   

3. A motion was made by Director Poveda, seconded by Director 

Laudner and unanimously carried to award a $500 scholarship to Sarah San-

dauer.  School Education Specialist Pam Rega presented the scholarship to 

Sarah Sandauer, a Valhalla Senior, who was the District's finalist for the Cali-

fornia Special District Association Scholarship.  Ms. Rega stated that Ms. San-

dauer had also won the Water Scholar 2000 Scholarship for $2,500 awarded by 

the California Water Awareness Campaign.   



 

Page 2 

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

28

29

4. Water Conservation Coordinator, Jan Tubiolo requested that the 

Board recognize the students of EastLake High School Color Guard Team and 

the Monte Vista High School Varsity Baseball Team for their fund-raising efforts 

in assisting with the Community Based Organization (CBO) ULFT Distribution 

Program.   

Teri Marzett, CTSI Corp. Administrator, presented a check in the amount 

of $3,210 to the EastLake High School Color Guard Team.   

Ms. Tubiolo stated that the Monte Vista High School Varsity Baseball 

Team was still working on their collection program.  Coach Smelko of Monte 

Vista thanked the Board for the opportunity to participate in the program.   

 5. Director Inocentes requested that a verbatim transcript be placed 

into the minutes of April 19th.   

A motion was made by Director Watton and seconded by Director Pov-

eda to approve the Minutes of April 19, 2000 and May 3, 2000 as presented.  

Director Price asked that Director Inocentes' opinion mentioned in the April 19th 

Minutes not be made an attachment to the minutes.  She also asked that a list-

ing of those who attended Closed Session Meetings be in the Minutes.   

 President Price said there was a motion and second on the floor to 

approve the minutes of April 19th and May 3rd, as amended.  The motion carried 

with Director Inocentes voting no.   

 6. A motion was made by Director Laudner, seconded by Director 

Watton and unanimously carried to approve the demands as listed.   

 7. President Price inquired if anyone in the audience desired to ad-

dress the Board on any item not on the Agenda.  Mr. Ed Cabradilla asked if he 

could comment on the Auld Goff project.  President Price asked if he wanted to 



 

Page 3 

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

28

29

speak now or at the time the item was discussed on the Agenda.  He said he 

would wait for the discussion. 

A motion was made by Director Poveda, seconded by Director Watton 

and unanimously carried, to approve the following items on the Consent 

Calendar: 

 a) REQUEST TO CHANGE DISTRICT PURCHASING POLICY TO 
INCREASE THE COMPETITIVE PRICING REQUIREMENT 
FROM $150 TO $1,000 PER PURCHASE 

 
 b) DENIAL OF OSWALL REQUEST OF WAIVER OF SURCHARGE 

REGARDING AGREEMENT PREVENTING WATER AND/OR 
SEWER USE AND PROVIDING FOR DEFERRAL OF CERTAIN 
WATER AND/OR SEWER AVAILABILITY STANDBY CHARGES 

 
 c) APPROVAL OF TOPMARK COMMUNITIES' REQUEST FOR 

WAIVER OF SECTION 60.10.C OF THE DISTRICT CODE OF 
ORDINANCES 

 
 8. General Counsel Harron said that there was a slight amendment 

to the agreement regarding the Auld Goff funding.  The amendment would allow 

Auld Goff to argue the billing of Staff time on entitlements.  Mr. Harron said he 

had no objection to the amendment and assured the Board that the billing 

issues would be resolved prior to Auld Goff receiving any funds.   

 President Price stated that Mr. Rodriquez had asked to speak to the 

Board regarding this issue.  Mr. Ruben Rodriquez, Representative of the Rate-

payers Association, stated they were in support of the Golf Course 

Development and thought the Board had done the best thing in developing the 

property.  He stated they had three concerns:  there was a more appropriate 

tool for the development of the site, the loan seems not to have any public 

benefit, and they had not received an answer to their letter sent on May 1st.  Mr. 



 

Page 4 

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

28

29

Rodriquz said he was asking them not to take action on the loan.  He also said 

he was interested in meeting with the General Manager.   

 Mr. Ed Cabradilla said he didn't know all of the information about the Golf 

Course but felt the loan was not advisable and asked the Board to reconsider.   

 General Counsel Harron stated he had contacted the bank regarding 

what they would charge for a loan this size and they advised 10-1/2 to 11%.  He 

stated the loan is money that would not be used immediately, the District would 

receive 11% interest and this would benefit our customers.  General Counsel 

Harron summarized the terms of the loan and explained why he felt the loan 

was adequately secured.  

 Director Poveda stated that the golf course is a creative way to keep 

rates down.   

 Director Inocentes said he is opposing Staff’s recommendation.  He 

stated some of his concerns included his feeling that the developer had 

defaulted in several different areas.  He said based upon a letter the District 

received from an attorney representing the Otay Ratepayer's Alliance he had 

concerns and urged getting a second opinion whether this would be a gift of 

public funds.  Director Inocentes also said he didn't feel there was proper con-

sideration for the agreement.  He also mentioned that another lessee was a day 

late on their payment and the District had pressured them even with the lessee 

having credit on the books.   

 General Counsel Harron stated it was not a gift of public funds and that 

California Water Code authorizes the District to spend money for recreational 

purposes contiguous to a reservoir.  Mr. Harron said that there is a dispute 



 

Page 5 

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

28

29

regarding the money owed on the entitlements by Mr. Strode but that it is not a 

default.   

 Director Watton stated that Helix had also entered into a lease for a golf 

course which was similar to Otay's.  One of the differences is the concessions 

made by each District.  Helix agreed to provide free water for the course which 

costs approximately $350,000 a year so he doesn't feel the irrigation loan is out 

of line.  Director Watton stated in reference to Director Inocentes' claim regard-

ing another lessee being pressured, he remembered there was money owed on 

a lease payment and that the money was brought in, but he didn't remember 

any credit on the books.  He asked that Staff research the issue.   

 A motion was made by Director Watton, seconded by Director Poveda 

and carried with Director Inocentes voting no, to enter into the Irrigation System 

Agreement with Auld Goff whereby Otay would front fund $687,195 in irrigation 

system costs subject to reimbursement from Auld Goff and authorize the Gen-

eral Manager to sign the agreement on behalf of the District contingent upon 

Auld Goff paying the $103,000 owed for reimbursement of entitlements.   

 9. President Price said there were no Directors' travel requests.   

 10. Administrative Services Department Head presented the monthly 

Administrative Services Report.  He stated that Brad Thorson will be leaving the 

District on Friday to accept another position and that 12 employees had volun-

teered to work at the Spring Garden Festival on May 20th.  President Price 

requested that recognition be placed in those employees' personnel files.   

 Mr. Alvarez said that they are currently conducting a salary survey on the 

frozen classes and that the Merit Market Adjustment for the coming year will be 

3.5% which will be brought to the Board to take effect July 1st.   



 

Page 6 

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

28

29

 11. Operations Department Head Mahanke presented the Operations 

Department monthly report.  He mentioned that Staff was currently working on a 

24" break in ID 7 and that there weren't any customers out of service due to the 

flexibility in that area.   

 12. Finance Department Head Chambers presented the Financial 

Report.  She stated the District is doing well and that total revenues exceeded 

the budget by 11% for the nine months ended March 31st.   

 Ms. Chamber said several meetings ago when former Director Haden 

appeared, he had a question on his water bill and felt there had been a rate 

increase.  She stated Staff met with Mr. Haden and explained that two items 

had been combined on the bill in order to save printing space and that there 

had not been a rate increase.   

 Ms. Chambers summarized the items discussed at the workshop on May 

15th.  She stated Staff reviewed with the Board the allocation of the sewer rates 

and costs.   

The second item discussed was the energy fees and due to controlling 

escalating energy costs, a proposed reduction in energy fees will be brought to 

the Board at its next meeting.   

Ms. Chambers said that Staff requested the multiple dwelling units fee be 

reduced due to growth in the District and that item will also be brought to the 

next meeting.  The rate stabilization fund was discussed and due to the 

increased sales of grading water and construction the District had unanticipated 

excess revenue of $1,000,000.  The Board recommended rebating this to cus-

tomers.   



 

Page 7 

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

28

29

She stated the final item discussed at the workshop was the unfunded 

medical liability for the retirees.  The Board designated a fund that will maintain 

itself be set aside so that there would be no impact on future budgets.   

 13. General Counsel Harron said that the Board had received a letter 

from Pacific Bay Homes which he felt mischaracterized the negotiations so far.  

Staff will respond to that letter and send a copy of that response to all Board 

Members.   

Mr. Harron stated Staff had received a claim from the family of the man 

who was killed on Dictionary Hill in the trench collapse.  He said he felt the Dis-

trict didn't have any exposure in the case because of it being a workers' comp 

matter.  Director Watton asked if the family was receiving interim benefits from 

worker's comp and Mr. Harron said he would find out.   

14. General Manager Griego stated he was pleased with the results of 

the workshop.  He stated the Little Hoover Commission Report has focused 

more attention on Special Districts and possibly the District should consider 

offering our budget as a model.   

 15. Acting Engineering Department Head Peasley presented the 

monthly Engineering Department Report.  He stated the City of San Diego had 

started constructing a permanent connection with us in the Otay Mesa/Heritage 

Road area in order to serve their customers while its infrastructure is repaired.   

 16. Director Watton stated there was a May 5th Daily Transcript article 

about the Inland Feeder in their packets.  He said there were still comments 

regarding water quality and how the feeder is necessary to fill Diamond Valley 

Lake.  The lake is presently being filled and they are dealing with any water 

quality problems without the Inland Feeder being on line.   



 

Page 8 

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

28

29

 Director Watton said he agreed with the General Manager in working 

with the Little Hoover Commission and also insuring they understand the differ-

ence between retained earnings and reserves.  Director Price said it was also 

important for them to understand the difference between a Special District that 

is built out and one that has continuing growth.   

 17. Director Laudner stated he attended the Council of Water Utilities 

and the Natural Resources Meeting at the City.   

 Director Price said she attended the ACWA/JPIA conference in Monterey 

and also the Council of Water Utilities.   

 Director Inocentes said he attended ACWA at his own expense.   

18. With no further business to come before the Board, the meeting 

was adjourned at 3:11 p.m. 

 
___________________________________ 

President 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
_________________________ 

District Secretary 
 


